
 

ROCKFORD BOARD OF EDUCATION 
Regular Meeting – June 12, 2023 

5:30 PM 
Agenda 

 

CALL TO ORDER 

MOMENT OF SILENCE/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

BUDGET HEARING 

1. Presentation 
2. Public Hearing/Comments 

RECOGNITION 

1. Examples in Excellence 
2. Administrators Choice Art Award 
3. Congressional Art Award 
4. National Spelling Bee participant 
5. Athletic Recognition 
6. Nomination of Nick Reichenbach for MASB Board Officer 

ACTION ITEMS – CONSENT AGENDA 

1. Approval of Minutes from the May 8, 2023 meeting 
2. Approval of Minutes from the May 18, 2023 meeting 
3. Presentation of bills in the amount of $10,424,665.28 
4. MHSAA Resolution 
5. Certified Staff Resignations 

REPORTS 

1. Grow Your Own educator grant from the MDE 
2. Committee Reports 

a. Policy 
b. Human Resources 
c. Finance 

3. FOIA Appeal Notice 

NEW BUSINESS 

1. Certified Staff Recommendations 
2. Administrative Recommendation 
3. Administrative Contract Renewal 
4. Wage Agreements 
5. Approval of New Elementary School Name 
6. 2022-2023 Budget Amendments 

a. General Fund (including Athletics) 
b. Food Service 
c. Activity Fund 
d. Public Purpose Trust Fund 

7. 2023-2024 Budget Proposals 
a. General Fund (including Athletics) 
b. Food Service 



c. Debt Retirement 
d. Activity Fund 
e. Public Trust Fund 

8. Other Financial Matters 
a. 2023 Tax Levy Certification 

9. Parks and Rec Millage Renewal Resolution 
10. Potential Land Purchase Resolution 
11. Roguewood Elementary Bid Packet 
12. Crestwood Elementary Easement 
13. North Rockford Middle School Flooring 
14. Roguewood Elementary Flooring 
15. Elementary Math Manipulatives purchase 
16. High School Classroom Library expansion 
17. Schools of Choice 105C Resolution 

 

OLD BUSINESS 

1. Board Operating Procedures – 2nd reading 

RECOGNITION OF VISITORS AND HEARING OF PEOPLE PRESENT 

SUPERINTENDENT REMARKS 

ADJOURNMENT 



Meeting Minutes - Regular Meeting 
May 8, 2023 

Date | time Monday –May 8, 2023 | 5:30 p.m. 
Location Administration Boardroom 

Meeting called to order with a moment of silence and the Pledge of Allegiance by President Folsom 

In Attendance 

Board of Education: Tricia Anderson, Kelley Freridge, Barbara Helms, Jarrod Folsom, Jake Himmelspach, 
Christie Ramsey, Nick Reichenbach 

Student representative:  Olivia Bommarito 

Administration: Dr. Steve Matthews, Mike Ramm, Mike Cuneo, Korie Wilson-Crawford, Mindy Duba, Lisa 
Jacobs, Jodi Nester. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Motion was made by Christie Ramsey to approve the agenda as presented.  Support by Kelley Freridge.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

Recognition 

Dr. Matthews honored Rebecca Kilgore for being chosen as the MSBOA Teacher of the Year.  A certificate was 
presented to Rebecca by Board President Jarrod Folsom. 
 
Certificates were handed out to several Odyssey of the Mind teams for their success this year.   

Consent Agenda 

Motion was made to approve the consent agenda by Kelley Freridge with support by Nick Reichenbach.  
Motion carried unanimously. 

 KISD Budgets 
 Approval of the minutes from the April 17, 2023 meeting. 
 Presentation of bills in the amount of $10,240,324.84 

 

Reports 

Student Representative Report 
Olivia Bommarito gave a report to the Board of Education about things that are happening at the secondary 
level.  The Prom was held on May 6 at the Frederick Meijer Gardens and was a great success.  The students 
had a great time.   Senior sunset is being planned by the juniors and student council.  There will be yard 
games and food trucks for the Seniors.  Relay for life is holding a fundraiser.  Olivia gave updates on Spring 
Sports.  Olivia thanked the Board for the opportunity to serve as student representative.  President Folsom 
presented Olivia with a book signed by Administration and Board members along with a gift card to 
Amazon. 

 



Board of Education Regular Meeting 
May 8, 2023 

Collaborative Team Reports 
Elementary - Mindy McGinn (Principal, Lakes Elementary) shared that they have been working on wax 
museums and other events to enrich learning.   The elementary buildings are also doing fundraising for 
relay for life.  Seven new teachers have been hired at the elementary level.   

 

Secondary – Tom Hosford (Principal, Rockford High School) reported on things happening at the secondary 
level.  Band and Choir concerts are happening.  The seventh-grade students are attending a white caps 
game.  The RHS Band will be playing the National Anthem the day the students are at the game.  Eighth-
grade students will be attending Michigan’s Adventure.  At the High School level there are activities 
happening including staff appreciation.  The spring musical included 8th, 9th and 10th grade students.  Dr. 
Matthews had a small role in the play as well.    The E-sports team took second place at a recent competition 
held at Western Michigan University.  Trustee Reichenbach commented on how much the E-sports program 
has grown.  

Committee Reports 
Board Trustee Christie Ramsey discussed the Board Operating Procedures policy that they are working on.  
There will be a first reading tonight.  This is something that Rockford hasn’t had before but many boards do.   

Board Trustee Kelley Freridge discussed the curriculum committee meeting.  They were able to see and use 
the Math Manipulatives and the expanded AP offering program.  They also covered the process for new 
curriculum.  Assistant Superintendent, Mike Ramm would be happy to discuss the process with anyone 
who may have questions.  Board Trustee Nick Reichenbach commented on how important it is to see the 
process.     

Summer Learning Report 
Assistant Superintendent of Curriculum Mike Ramm introduced Sharon Wells, LaRinda Fase and Michelle 
Corey.   

Director of Literacy Sharon Wells shared the focus areas for summer learning which include targeted, 
community, choice and home.  She covered each area and how much RPS has used ESSER funds to increase 
summer learning.   

Director of Special Programs, LaRinda Fase talked about the secondary summer learning program.  There 
are several offerings including credit recovery.  Students can take two classes during the five-week period.  
Students can also take required classes for graduation so that they can fit more things into their schedule.  
Workshops are one to two weeks courses taught by RPS teachers.  This program serves approximately 150 
students. 

District Teacher Consultant for Special Services Michelle Corey shared the Special Education opportunities 
available to students during the summer.  We are also offering tutoring opportunities for the Middle and 
High School levels.  Speech services are also being offered.   There will be 30-minute sessions available.    
ASD and CI programs will also be offered.   

Sharon Wells talked about the summer community programs including the Hillview learning program.  The 
Rockford Book Bus is also running this summer and was very successful last year.  It’s a great opportunity 
for students. 

Board Trustee Reichenbach asked for clarification on the number of staff at the DK/K level.   

 

 

 



Board of Education Regular Meeting 
May 8, 2023 

Retirement Report 
Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Korie Wilson-Crawford shared that the number of retirees 
this year is approximately twenty.  Over the next few months we will provide the board with lists of the 
retirees.  Ms. Wilson-Crawford asked if the board had any questions regarding the hiring process.  Board 
trustee Jake Himmelspach asked if the teacher shortage is making a difference in the number of applicants 
that we are receiving.  Ms. Wilson-Crawford explained that we are getting good numbers of applicants for 
positions.  Board President Folsom asked if we expect the number of retirees to increase.  We do expect it to 
increase slightly.  We also expect to see a few resignations as well.   

KISD Board Report 
Dr. Matthews explained that the Kent ISD election will take place on Monday, June 5th at 6 p.m.  One 
member of our Board of Education will need to be physically present for this meeting to cast the vote for 
Rockford Public Schools Board of Education. The resolution is being presented at this meeting for review 
and will be adopted at a special meeting that will be scheduled prior to the election.  Board Trustee 
Reichenbach explained the process further.    

OAK Construction Update 
 A presentation was given by OAK Representatives Jeremy Amshey and Jared Goss updating the progress 
of the construction projects happening at various locations.      

 

New Business 

Certified Staff  

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Korie Wilson-Crawford shared an update on four new 
Certified Staff Hires.  Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Christie Ramsey. 

Roguewood Power Easements 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance Mike Cuneo explained the need for an easement at Roguewood 
Elementary due to building expansion.  This is required by Consumers Energy.  Motion to approve by Nick 
Reichenbach with support by Jake Himmelspach.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

Policy Update – Board Operating Procedures - 1st Reading 
Dr. Matthews explained the need for Board Operating Procedures.  This is something that was suggested by 
the MASB.  This policy was reviewed by the policy committee.  There is no action needed at this meeting.  
Board President Folsom talked about the need to visit this document periodically to make any necessary 
updates and asked the board members to submit feedback to him.  Board Trustee Kelley Freridge and Board 
President Jarrod Folsom thanked Dr. Matthews and Korie Wilson-Crawford for their leadership and help 
with the process of creating this document.  Board Trustee Dr. Helms asked for clarification regarding the 
readings and approval of policies.  Board Trustee Nick Reichenbach asked for clarification on how to submit 
their suggestions. 

Chromebook Purchase 

Assistant Superintendent of Finance, Mike Cuneo explained that this purchase of chromebooks is a refresh 
for broken chromebooks.  There are allowances in the bond for that.  The purchase would be for 300 
replacement chromebooks.  Motion to approve by Kelley Freridge with support by Jake Himmelspach.  
Motion passed unanimously. 



Board of Education Regular Meeting 
May 8, 2023 

2023 Graduates 

The Board of Education was provided with a list of the 2023 graduates for Rockford High School, River Valley 
Academy and Adult Education. Board Trustee Nick Reichenbach praised the administrators, board and 
district for continuing to invest in all Rockford Public Schools programs.     

 

Old Business 

Spring Policy Update – 2nd Reading 

Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources Korie Wilson-Crawford brought the spring policies to the 
board for approval.  Most of the information is editorial.  These policies were brought to the last board 
meeting for a first reading.  Motion to approve Christie Ramsey with support by Nick Reichenbach.  Motion 
passed unanimously. 

Recognition of Visitors & Hearing of People Present 

The following individuals addressed the Board of Education.  

Lily Davey Lynelle Buchanan Ali McDuffee  Duane Gritter  Andrea Jacobson  

Superintendent Remarks 

Dr. Matthews thanked the High School administration and staff for their help making Prom be very successful.   

Dr. Matthews addressed a parent concern about a CNN program that is occasionally shown in our Middle 
School.  He watched the show and found it was designed for middle school students.  If parents have any 
concerns they should reach out to their middle school principal. 

Adjournment 

President Folsom adjourned the meeting at 7:11 p.m. 

    
Recording Secretary Secretary, Board of Education 

 



Meeting Minutes - Special Meeting 
May 18, 2023 

Date | time Monday –May 18, 2023 | 7:30 a.m. 
Location Administration Boardroom 

Meeting called to order with a moment of silence by President Folsom 

In Attendance 

Board of Education: Kelley Freridge, Barbara Helms, Jarrod Folsom, Jake Himmelspach, Christie Ramsey, 
Nick Reichenbach 

Student representative:  Tricia Anderson 

Administration: Dr. Steve Matthews, Jodi Nester. 

Adoption of Agenda 

Motion was made by Kelley Freridge to approve the agenda as presented.  Support by Christie Ramsey.  
Motion passed unanimously. 

KISD Election 

There was discussion regarding the Kent ISD School Board Election and who would represent Rockford 
Public Schools.  A decision was made that Jake Himmelspach would attend and cast the votes for the Rockford 
Public Schools Board of Education. 
 
After discussing the candidates running for two available spots, there was a motion by Nick Reichenbach to 
recommend voting for Andrea Haidle and Ann Hamming.  Motion passed unanimously by roll call vote. 

  

Adjournment 

President Folsom adjourned the meeting at 7:39 a.m. 

    
Recording Secretary Secretary, Board of Education 

 



BBOARD REPORT ON DISBURSEMENTS
    

  DATE:  5/1/2023 6/5/2023

PAYROLL

GENERAL FUND NET PAYROLL 23 & 24 2,789,908.62
FOOD SERVICE 23 & 24 62,569.99
ATHLETIC FUND 23 & 24 143,224.60

TOTAL  ALL FUNDS 23 & 24 2,995,703.21

ALL FUNDS:
FEDERAL TAX          $ 315,988.73
SOCIAL SECURITY TAX-MEDICARE TAX $ 644,357.34
STATE TAX                $ 144,583.19
TOTAL $ 1,104,929.26

$ 4,100,632.47

BLUE CROSS INSURANCE $ 40,361.14
NVA/NATIONAL VISION   $
ADN ADMIN(DENTAL) ADMIN FEES $ 80,595.10
MESSA (VSP/MED/ LIFE) $ 760,864.36
NATIONAL INSURANCE SVCS(L TERM DISABILITY $ 14,343.87
RETIREMENT PAYROLL  $ 3,649,091.51 $ 4,545,255.98
                

GASOLINE: CR CARD  # $ 0.00

UTILITIES:
DTE ENERGY 17,193.42
CONSUMERS ENERGY $ 101,698.71

PHONE SERVICE  CRD CARD # $
BP ENERGY (FORMERLY EDF ENERGY) BULK FUEL$ 17,883.73 $ 136,775.86

BAL ON  GEN FUND CREDIT CARD # $ $ 0.00
                                                                                                                                                                                                         
KENT ISD-ITINERANTS 280,888.85
KENT ISD TRANSPORTATION 96,493.53

$ 377,382.38

TOTAL OF ABOVE $ 9,160,046.69
BALANCE OF TOTAL GENERAL FUND 326,702.60
SINKING FUND REG CKS 0.00
SINKING FUND ACH CKS 0.00
SINKING FUND CREDIT CARD 0.00
2019 BOND REG CKS 260,042.29
2019 BOND ACH CKS 166,506.16
2019 BOND CREDIT CARD 80,205.33
GENERAL FUND ACH CKS 75,000.00
GENERAL FUND CREDIT CARD 356,162.21
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS 10,424,665.28







Human Resources Department 
Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.orgrg 

Memorandum 

To: Board of Education 
From: Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
Date: June 12, 2023 
Subject: 2023-2024 SCHOOL YEAR RESIGNATIONS/RETIREMENTS 

RESIGNATIONS                                                                                                                                                                      
Lauren Gleghorn  Teacher   Crestwood   06/02/2023                                        
Kelly Darling   Teacher  East Middle   06/02/2023                                        
Caitlin Marlowe  Teacher  North Middle   06/02/2023                                        
Kristin Baker   Teacher  Freshman Center  06/02/2023                        
Stephanie Rann  Psychologist  Special Services  06/02/2023                              
Alejandro Ramos  Teacher  Spanish Immersion  06/02/2023                             
Michael Cameron  Teacher  Lakes     06/02/2023                            
Ryan Kean   Teacher  Freshman Center  06/02/2023 

 

RETIREES                                                                                                                                                                                    
Christine Cooper  Teacher  Crestwood   07/01/2023                                        
Shari Cross-Osborne   Teacher   Valley View   07/01/2023                        
Michelle Ferguson   Teacher       North Middle   07/01/2023                                        
Tina Hankins    Teacher Consultant SPS / North Middle  07/01/2023                                        
Terry Hibdon   Teacher     High School   07/01/2023                                        
David Hodgkinson  Teacher      East Middle   07/01/2023                                        
Wendy Jenks   Teacher  Lakes    07/01/2023                                        
Terry Loughman-Auzins Teacher     Valley View   07/01/2023                                        
Holly Normington    Counselor  Freshman Center  07/01/2023                                        
Tom Reens     Speech Path              SPS / Meadow Ridge     07/01/2023                                        
Gina Truxton     Media Specialist           Freshman Center  07/01/2023                                        













Human Resources Department 
Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6554  Fax: 616.863.6355 

www.rockfordschools.orgrg 

Memorandum 

To: Board of Education 
From: Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
Date: June 12, 2023 
Subject: 2023-2024 SCHOOL YEAR CERTIFIED STAFF EMPLOYMENT RECOMMENDATIONS 

Chelsie Cowan 2nd Grade Crestwood 
Hannah Davis Math East Middle 
Brianna Espinoza 6th Grade Math/Science North Middle 
Erica Golembiewski ELA/Lab East Middle 
Katlyn Harrison 5th Grade Lakes 
Kendra Horton Speech Pathologist MDR / SPS 
Erin Kraker English RFC 
Holly Larson Art Valley View 
Anne Liskey Science High School 
Jessica Lousen ECSE Teacher SPS / MDR 
Dakota Marble English River Valley 
Madellyn Nichols English  High School 
Mikelle Noreen 5th Grade Crestwood 
Karen Osborn Kindergarten Valley View 
Abigail Reisen 2nd Grade Valley View 
Trenton Smith ECSE Teacher SPS / PKS 
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   
   











 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum 
To: Rockford Public Schools Board of Education 

From: Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent 

Date: June 12, 2023 

Subject: Name for the Elementary #9 

 

As you are aware, the Rockford Public Schools 2019 Bond approved by the voters of the Rockford School 

District included the building of a new elementary school. Elementary #9 is scheduled to be completed 

and open for students by August 2024. 

Currently, the building is operating without a name. 

Board policy is somewhat vague on the process of naming buildings and school facilities. Board Policy 

7250 – Commemoration and Naming of School Facilities. The guidance given focuses primarily on 

commemoration naming and naming rights. 

In the absence of policy directives, the administration followed the following process in developing a 

recommendation for the Board. 

 Naming ideas were solicited from the public 

o The public could submit a request through the website 

 A mailing also directed the community to the website 

 Elementary principals were asked to have a facilitated conversation with 3rd grade students at 

their building 

o Third grade students were chosen because they will be in 5th grade when the building 

opens so they were viewed as having “skin in the game.” 

o These suggestions were added to the list from the community 

 All suggested names were reviewed by the committees already established to work on the new 

elementary planning 

 The list of over 250 suggestions was narrowed down 

Office of the Superintendent 
Dr. Steve Matthews, Superintendent 
350 N. Main Street Rockford, MI 49341Phone: 
616.863.6554 Fax: 616.863.6355 



 Cabinet review the potential recommended names 

As names were reviewed we identified a set of criteria to guide us. 

 Location was important 

o However, we did not want a name with location to be exclusionary 

 Incorporating nature into the name would be preferable 

o The new elementary will have some outdoor education elements for the whole district 

o The new elementary has nature themes within the building 

 A name that fit within the framework of existing names would be appropriate 

o Some elementary names focused on nature 

 Parkside, Meadow Ridge, Roguewood, Valley View, Lakes 

o Some elementary names focused on place 

 Belmont 

 Cannonsburg 

 A name that was unique within our region and the state 

Given policy, current building names, and striving for uniqueness, it is recommended that the Rockford 

Public Schools Board of Education approve the name Edgerton Trails for the new elementary school. 





























































































Finance Department 
Michael A. Cuneo, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6555  Fax: 616.866.1911 

www.rockfordschools.org





























































2"

55' - 10"

59' - 0"

55' - 4"

12' - 2"

2' - 8"

8' - 0" 6' - 4"

2' - 8" 4' - 8" 16' - 8" 4' - 8" 8" 4' - 8" 21' - 4"

8' - 0"

1' - 4"

8"12' - 0"1' - 0"55' - 8"1' - 8"

29' - 10"

7' - 10"16' - 10"1' - 2"

2' - 8"









Finance Department 
Michael A. Cuneo, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6555  Fax: 616.866.1911 

www.rockfordschools.org











PROPOSED
RIGHT OF WAY TO

KENT COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION
(25.5' WIDE)

Description:
 Part of the NW 1/4 of the SW fractional 1/4 of
Section 18, T8N, R10W, Cannon Township, Kent
County, Michigan, described as: Commencing at the
West 1/4 corner of said Section 18; thence
S00°36'41"W 618.90 feet along the West line of said
SW fractional 1/4; thence S89°22'30"E 33.00 feet to
the PLACE OF BEGINNING of this description; thence
S89°22'30"E 25.50 feet; thence S00°36'41"W 447.72
feet; thence N89°23'19"W 0.50 feet; thence
N44°23'19"W 35.35 feet; thence N00°36'41"E 422.73
feet to the Place of Beginning.
Contains 11,104 square feet (0.255 acres)

EXHIBIT A

Prepared by: 
Exxel Engineering, Inc.

       5252 Clyde Park Avenue, SW
         Grand Rapids, MI  49509

RE: Rockford Public Schools (Crestwood)
S221004       05/17/2023   kv

























































































Human Resources Department 
Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent  

350 N. Main Street  Rockford, MI 49341 
Phone: 616.863.6557  Fax: 616.866.1911 

 

Memorandum 
To:   Dr. Steven Matthews, Superintendent 
From:  Korie Wilson-Crawford, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
Date:   June 12, 2023 
Subject:  Board Operating Procedures- Second Reading 

 

With the Policy Committee’s approval, the following Board Operating Procedures will be brought to the 
Board for a second reading on May 12, 2023.  

Board Policy 
Board Focus 
Board Meetings and Agenda Development 
Board Committees 
Board Member Building/Department Liaison Visits 
Hiring of Personnel other than the Superintendent 
Evaluation of the Superintendent 
Board Member Communication with Each Other & District 
Employees 
Media Contacts 
Board Meeting Norms 
Board Development 

 

Thank you for your continued support of the Policy Review Committee.  




